ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 18, 2005
8:33 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair

Senat or Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Gene Therriaul t

Senator Hollis French

Senat or Gretchen Quess

VEMBERS ABSENT
None
COVM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 56
"An Act relating to crimnal law and procedure, crimna
sentences, and probation and parole; and providing for an
effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 56

SHORT TI TLE: CRIM NAL LAW PROCEDURE/ SENTENCI NG
SPONSCR(s) : SENATOR(s) THERRI AULT, SEEKI NS

01/ 14/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 14/ 05 (S) JUD, FIN

W TNESS REG STER

Ms. Heat her Brakes

Staff to Senator Therriault

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 56 for the prinme sponsor

Ms. Susan Parkes

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Descri bed the contents of SB 56

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- January 18, 2005



Ms. Portia Parker

Department of Corrections

431 N. Franklin, Suite 400

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Described the sections of SB 56 that pertain
to the Departnent of Corrections

Ms. Barbara Brink

Publ i ¢ Def ender Agency

Department of Adm nistration

900 W5th Ave. Suite 200

Anchorage, AK 99501-2090

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Believes SB 56 is over-sweeping

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee nmeeting to order at 8:33:56 AM Present were Chair
Seekins and Senators Gene Therriault, Charlie Huggins and
G etchen Guess (participating on-line).

CHAI R SEEKINS announced that Senator Guess was unable to be
physically present indefinitely so would be participating via
tel econference. He requested a legal opinion from Tam Cook of
the D vision of Legal and Research Services about the extent of
Senator (Quess's participation via teleconference. M. Cook
determ ned that Senator (Guess can vote on any action taken on

| egi sl ati on except passing a bill out of conmmttee. He also
announced that as chair of the Senate Judiciary Conmttee, he
will require 3 affirmative votes to pass a bill out of commttee

and that the commttee would neet on Tuesdays, Wdnesdays and
Thursdays at 8:30 a.m He wel coned Senators Huggi ns and Guess to
the commttee and announced the commttee would take up SB 56.

SB 56- CRI M NAL LAW PROCEDURE/ SENTENCI NG

8:37:44 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT, prinme sponsor of SB 56, told nenbers that
Heat her Brakes would give an overview of the bill and then DOL
and DOC woul d speak to specific sections of the bill

MS5. HEATHER BRAKES, staff to Senator Therriault, said SB 56 was
drafted in response to a U S. Suprene Court ruling in June of
2004 that has affected Alaska's sentencing structure. Al aska's
presunptive sentencing schenme was developed in the 1970s. The

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- January 18, 2005



current system limts judicial discretion to a single definite
term unless the judge finds that aggravating or mtigating
factors exist, allowng for departure fromthe set term In June
of 2004, the U S Suprene Court struck down the State of
Washi ngton's sentencing structure, which is functionally
equi valent to Al aska's law, as unconstitutional. The court found
that under the Sixth Amendnent, a defendant has the right to
have a jury, not the judge, determ ne whether aggravating
circunstances exist to justify increasing a sentence above the
statutorily prescribed term The Blakely v. Wshington decision
has created confusion for the Al aska Court System and other

states. SB 56 will make it easier for judges to consider all
factors in sentencing and to inpose probation in all felony
cases. It wll nmake probation supervision nore effective by

giving police greater arrest authority over probationers. Chair
Seeki ns and Senator Therriault drafted SB 56 in conjunction with
DOL.

CHAI R SEEKI NS di scl osed that his son works for Ms. Parkes at DCL
as an assistant district attorney in Fairbanks.

M5. SUSAN PARKES, Deputy Attorney General, Crimnal Division,
Departnent of Law (DOL), told nenbers the Blakely decision has
created turnmoil in several states. She appreciated the quick
introduction and hearing of SB 56. DOL believes SB 56 is a
bal anced approach to the Bl akely probl em

M5. PARKES gave the following history of Alaska s sentencing
schene. Pre-1970, Al aska had open sentencing, which gave judges
wi de-open discretion for sentencing. The legislature found a
| arge disparity anong sentences for the same crinme across the
state existed; therefore presunptive sentencing was introduced.
The legislature decided to <create a presunptive sentence
presunmed to be the appropriate sentence for the typical offender
commtting the typical offense. The legislature wanted to
provide sonme flexibility to individualize sentences. That's
where the aggravators and mtigators cane in. Judges nake
findings on aggravators and mtigators by clear and convincing
evi dence. The aggravators and mtigators are clearly defined in
statute and judges are not required to use them

M5. PARKES told nenbers the current system has worked well to
renove sentencing disparities. A 1999 felony sentencing study by
the Alaska Judicial Council found that all disparities in non-
presunptive ranges have decreased. DOL is proposing in SB 56 to
keep the best parts of the current system do away wth
disparity, provide judges wth flexibility, and conply wth

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- January 18, 2005



Bl akely in a bal anced way that will not eat up Alaska's crimna
justice resources.

8:44: 49 AM

M5. PARKES referred to a chart and said that instead of one set
appropriate sentence, SB 56 proposes a range that a judge can
use without having to find aggravators or mtigators. Alaska's
presunptive schene is fairly sinple conpared to other states; it
is based on one criterion - prior felony convictions. A sentence
can be increased for a sex felony with prior sex offenses, use
of a weapon, or for causing serious physical injury. Essentially
it is based on prior felonies. She described how to read the
chart; the bol ded | anguage is the range bei ng proposed.

8:46: 01 AM

MS. PARKES said that to go beyond the range, aggravators nust be
noticed by the state and presented to a trial jury. The jury
must find aggravators beyond a reasonable doubt. The judge has
the discretion to inpose an increased sentence.

Mtigation renmains the sanme under SB 56 and Blakely. A judge
still has the discretion to make findings on mtigators wth
cl ear and convincing evidence and decide whether to reduce the
sentence below the proposed presunptive range. DOL hopes to
maintain flexibility for the judge. Taking aggravators to a jury
trial will be nore resource intensive. SB 56 wll avoid the
grand jury requirenment. Currently, to indict for a felony
offense in Al aska, one must go to a grand jury. One judge ruled
that aggravators nmust go to the grand jury as well. SB 56 only
requires notice to the defense before trial. A grand jury often
happens early in a case when aggravating factors are unknown.

8:48: 34 AM

M5. PARKES said the next change pertains to the fact that
currently there are no presunptive sentences for first felony
of fenders for B and C felonies, and only for people with priors
and for class As and wunclassifieds. For wuniformty, SB 56
proposes a presunptive range for people convicted of B or C
felonies without priors. Sone people have expressed concern that
by creating these ranges, sentences wll be increased across the
board. One concern is that judges will automatically go to the
top of the range. DOL proposed ranges starting at the current
presunptive |evel and going up because mtigation hasn't
changed. She has not had that experience with judges and that is

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- January 18, 2005



not DOL's intent. DOL's intent is to maintain the flexibility
that judges currently have in being able to increase sentences.
If that is of concern to the commttee, DOL will work on intent
| anguage that says it is not the legislature's intent to
i ncrease sentences across the board but to maintain the current
systemin a way that conplies with Bl akely.

8:50:48 AM

M5. PARKES said another highlight in the bill is an added
statutory aggravator in Sec. 19.

CHAI R SEEKI NS specified that the commttee is working on version
F.

M5. PARKES referred to page 15 and said that aggravator 31 is
based on a prior crimnal history of msdeneanors. The question
is if the legislature decides to create presunptive sentences
for first felony offenders, should sonmeone wth no prior
felonies but a lengthy history of msdemeanors be treated
differently than soneone with no prior crimnal history at all.
Aggravator 31 recognizes that a lengthy crimnal history is
defined as 5 or nore class A msdeneanors and allows a judge to
aggravate the sentence if appropriate.

MS. PARKES descri bed the other proposed changes as:

On section 2, page 2, regarding periodic sentencing -
currently judges can inpose periodic sentencing, which
can be a nightmare for DOC, i.e., a one-year sentence
could be served on weekends only. This creates safety
and paperwork problenms. In this section, the ability
to allow periodic sentencing would be limted to a
situation where a judge was authorized to order such
sentencing. It nmust be for an enploynent obligation
that pre-existed to sentencing and that wll create
extrenme hardship and prevent the defendant from paying
fines or restitution. Judges have been giving periodic
sentencing for enploynent, illnesses, funerals, or
births to the point where people cone and go, creating
a hardship for DOC. The Ilegislature may want to
restrict this provision further to sentences that are
of a certain |ength.

Section 6(a)(7) on page 4 - currently, judges often

del egate to probation officers the ability to inpose
appropriate probation conditions as circunstances

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- January 18, 2005



change. Soneone may be sentenced, do 3 or 4 years,
then be on probation. Crcunstances can change
dramatically for that person once he/she is on parole.
Since the judge won't know the appropriate conditions,
he/she will delegate authority to a probation officer
A recent Court of Appeals decision questioned whether
judges have | egal authority to delegate. Thi s
provision would codify that practice and allow judges
to have that flexibility. She deferred to Deputy
Comm ssi oner Parker for further explanation.

The | ast substantive change is in Sections 26, 30, and 31 on
pages 19 and 23. A recent Court of Appeals opinion was issued in
Rickle v State. That case involved a situation during which the
City of Honer police officers were doing a bar check in Honer
and saw a felony DU convict in a bar that was either on
probation or parole. They knew that person should not be in a
bar. The police officers detained the person, called his
probation officer and confirmed that he was on parole. They were
authorized to arrest the person for a parole violation and did a
pat down search, during which they found cocaine and arrested
him The Court of Appeals found the police did not have the
authority to do an initial stop and detain to investigate. DOL
believes it is appropriate for a police departnent to
investigate possible parole violations. This change allows a
police departnent to stop if there is reasonable suspicion; if
probabl e cause of probation conditions exists, the police have
the authority to arrest that person.

8:58:43 AM

MS. PARKES said the Bl akely problem required changes be nmade for
parole and probation, so those changes are addressed in this
bill.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked if Section 30 gives a parole officer wthout
a warrant the ability to also arrest a parolee for violation and
whet her that exists now

M5. PARKES said yes but it does not exist now for certain
vi ol ati ons.

8:59: 33 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked how the court would have the police
officer handle such a situation and whether the police officer

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- January 18, 2005



woul d just report to the parole officer that the person was in
the bar and let the systemhandle it.

MS. PARKES said yes. The court ruled the police could not detain
based only on the belief that the parolee should not have been
in a bar. The parole officer would have had to file a parole
violation and made an arrest at a later tine.

9:00: 12 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the police had picked him up, would
they have to follow the sanme procedures for questioning anyone
and in the nmeantinme check with the parole officer.

M5. PARKES said yes. R ght now police officers nust have
reasonabl e suspicion to stop and investigate. They would have to
foll ow the same procedures under the bill

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the defendant would have the sane
right to remain silent and request |egal counsel.

M5. PARKES sai d absol utely.
9:01: 00 AM

SENATOR GUESS said the opinions issued by the Suprene Court two
weeks ago on nmandatory sentencing and guidelines are difficult
to understand. She asked if the mandatory sentencing provision
in SB 56 could conflict with the | atest Suprenme Court deci sion.

MS. PARKES said those decisions were very confusing. The Suprene
Court's FanFan- Booker decisions |ooked at the federal sentencing
guidelines and how Blakely affected them That decision
consisted of 125-pages of nmjorities, dissents, joinings and
not-joinings. DOL does not believe that ruling affects SB 56.
The federal sentencing guidelines are significantly different
fromthe way Al aska's presunptive sentencing is set up. They are
much nore conplicated and require nore factual findings fromthe
judge to get the defendant on the grid. For the nbst part,
Al aska's grid is based essentially on prior felony convictions.
The court is clear that the judge can still make that kind of a
finding. The factual findings beyond prior convictions require a
jury. She believes the upshot of the FanFan-Booker deci sions
were that the federal guidelines would be voluntary. They
ordered judges to consult them but judges are not required to
foll ow t hem

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- January 18, 2005



9:03: 25 AM

SENATOR QUESS said Section 6 was described as codifying current
practice. She asked if any literacy/conmunication issues m ght
arise if new conditions are put on a probation officer when a
parolee is not English proficient.

M5. PARKES deferred to Deputy Comm ssioner Parker but said the
proposal indicates the additional condition be provided in
witing to the defendant. She presuned the probation officer
woul d talk to a defendant to nmake sure the conditions are clear.
She recogni zed that concern and explained that to enforce a new
condition, there nust be a finding that the person clearly
understood it.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked Ms. Parkes to standby for future questions.
9: 05: 20 AM

VS. PORTI A  PARKER, Deputy Comm ssi oner, Depart nent of
Corrections (DOC), said she would expand on sections that affect
the DOC. Periodic sentencing can be very problematic when
managi ng popul ations with overcrowled facilities. DOC is at 100
to 103 percent capacity all of the tine. She is aware of two
cases where judges ordered periodic sentences to be served. In
one, a prisoner with a long sentence served the sentence on
weekends - for over one year the prisoner had to be discharged
every week. That process is costly and time consum ng. The ot her
case involved a 7-year sentence. The prisoner was released
during the sumrers with no supervision. Long-term prisoners are
often sent to Arizona so prisoners have to be transported back
and forth when released. That <creates a disparity anong
sentences for other inmates. DOC sees phil osophi cal and
| ogi stical problens. Short prison sentences are not as much of a
probl em because prisoners mght spend their time in a halfway
house.

9:07:29 AM

M5. PARKER said in regard to Section 6 - the general condition
of probation - the nunber 12 condition is an extrenely inportant
condition for probation officers to do their jobs effectively.
Nunber 12 is the delegation of sone authority to a probation
officer by a judge. It preserves the current practice. This
condition has been used in Al aska and al nbst every other state
and jurisdiction. Cenerally, the court would order that the
probati oner abide by any special instructions given by the court

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- January 18, 2005



or any of its duly authorized officers, including probation
officers of DOC. This allows the probation officer the
flexibility to respond to things as they cone up - some conmmon
occurrences are substance abuse issues not reported during the
sentenci ng phase. |If those issues did not cone up at sentencing,
the probation officer can intervene later and require treatnent.
That avoi ds going back to court to request additional conditions
and keeps people out of prison. Returning to court would place a
huge burden on the court system This would be used as an
i nternedi ate sancti on.

9:10: 33 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked Ms. Parker to read that | anguage agai n.

M5. PARKER reads probation condition nunber 12, which refers to
del egating sone authority to a probation officer by a judge:

Abi de by any special instructions given by the court
or any of its duly authorized officers, including
probation officers of the Departnent of Corrections.

SENATOR THERRI AULT referred to Senator Guess's concern about
non- Engl i sh speakers and asked Ms. Parker to suggest |anguage to
make that clear

M5. PARKER said a parole officer would nake sure a non-English
speaki ng prisoner understands the conditions of probation or
parole. She offered to look into adding a provision to have the
person sign a statenent sayi ng he/ she under st ands.

9:12: 46 AM

M5. PARKER expl ai ned that Sections 26, 30, and 31 affect parole
by giving the police officer authority to stop and detain
sonmeone who mght be violating parole conditions, which is
inportant in smaller villages w thout probation offices. DOC has
statutory authority to work with VPSOs, who can serve as parole
agents. In those areas, DOC provides training. In larger cities,
| aw enforcenent calls the on-duty supervisor and DOC works
col |l aboratively with law enforcenent. DOC believes this wll
inmprove the working relationship wth Ilaw enforcenent and
intervene to keep offenders from viol ating.

Sec. 29 codifies the current practice of the parole board by
maki ng clear that the board has the authority to deny a prisoner

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- January 18, 2005



consideration for parole, once the board has considered
di scretionary parole and the prisoner was deni ed rel ease.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if, regarding Arizona and periodic
i nprisonnment, prisoners sent to Arizona go back and forth to
Al aska.

M5. PARKER said DOC tries not to send prisoners with periodic
sentences to Arizona because of the increased transportation
costs. DOC tries to send only prisoners with |long sentences to
Arizona, although DOC gets ordered by the court to transport
pri soners back for other reasons. She said although DOC tries to
keep prisoners with periodic sentences in the state, it puts
pressure on DOC s ability to nove prisoners around, even within
the state.

9:16: 32 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked Ms. Parker to describe the specific
circunstances that led the court to allow the one prisoner wth
a periodic sentence to be released during the sumrers.

M5. PARKER said the court released that prisoner to conmerci al
fish. She said she doesn't know how nany of those types of cases
exist and the overall inpact on the system She noted those two
exanpl es were in Juneau.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if that person had a 7-year sentence
and what the crinme was.

M5. PARKER said she would find out.
9:17: 33 AM

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked if, under this proposal, the same commerci al
fishing scenario could occur but nore explanation would be
requi red and the process woul d be tougher.

M5. PARKER said yes, and DOC s concern is that if judges use
this to a greater extent, DOC would have a very serious problem
managi ng that population. She explained that serving tinme in
prison is a hardship on every inmte who has to serve tinme in
prison when it conmes to supporting their famlies.

CHAIR SEEKINS said he is wunaware of the extent of periodic

sentencing and asked if SB 56 would create a new cottage
industry in the sentencing process, i.e. requiring studies,

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- January 18, 2005



surveys, nore |awers, etc. He asked if the nunber of periodic
sentences is significant.

9:19: 02 AM
M5. PARKER offered to find out.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked if DOC believes using periodic sentencing
for short sentences may be worthwhil e.

M5. PARKER said DOC doesn't oppose periodic sentences for short
sentences of 60 to 90 days and noted that they are granted nost
often. DOC doesn't oppose them for first tine offenders either
DOC' s concern is inposing periodic sentences for felony
convi ctions or |long-term sentences.

9:20: 21 AM

CHAI R SEEKINS asked if DOC has a parameter it is confortable
with.

M5. PARKER said for sentences of |ess than one year. DOC prefers
to have the authority to make decisions based on DOC's matri x.
DOC does not want to expand the use of periodic sentences but
under st ands why they are necessary at tines.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if SB 56 would elimnate a judge's ability
to use periodic sentences.

M5. PARKER believed the «current |anguage [allows periodic
sentences] for nore than one year.

9:21:37 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS asked Ms. Parkes if this l|anguage fits within a
particular time paraneter.

M5. PARKER said the draft does not |limt the sentence length for
periodic sentencing. The current statute allows periodic
sentencing with no limts at all. The proposal limts it to
enpl oynment situations but not to certain sentences.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the proposed | anguage does not take
into consideration the hardship on the famly. It says if the
system has inposed a requirenent on the individual, the system
shoul d not prevent the person fromneeting that requirenent.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- January 18, 2005



M5. PARKES believed that was the intention.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he would consider adding |anguage to
differentiate between shorter and longer terns of inprisonnent.
He added the general public would want those sentences to apply
only to crimes of Iesser severity. Wth regard to economc
hardshi p, he said any person who gets hinself thrown in jail
i nposes an econom ¢ hardship on his famly. A deterrent to crine
is the hardship one m ght inpose on any rel ationships.

9:23:55 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS |iked Senator Therriault's suggestion and asked
participants to work together to figure out a cut-off point. He
t hought the enbarassnment factor could be as great as the
econom c factor. He expressed concern that a |arge nunber of the
prisoners are indigent. The state arrests them defends them
houses them in prison and supports their famlies on welfare.
Peopl e need to be punished for crinmes they conmt but the state
needs to be cognizant of the cost. He said his concern is that
sentencing is effective in deterring crine.

SENATOR GUESS referred to Section 6 and asked if any history of
abuse by current probation officers exists and whether an
appeal s process for additional conditions exists.

9:26: 29 AM

MS. PARKER believed they could appeal to the court because the
court orders probationers to conply with certain conditions. She
said the conditions were challenged in court and appeal ed, which
is one reason for the current situation.

SENATOR GUESS asked if that is inplied in the | anguage.

M5. PARKER said that is correct.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if M. Parker wants a cut-off of one year
for a periodic sentence.

M5. PARKER said yes and that DOC prefers the restriction for
enploynent only. In addition, the crinme wuld have to be a
m sdeneanor if the sentence is | ess than one year.

9:28: 32 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- January 18, 2005



SENATOR HUGGE NS asked what the procedure is to revoke periodic
i mpri sonmnent .

M5. PARKER said a warrant would be issued. She said she would
have to | ook into how many tines that happens.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked for the cost to DOC and the man hours
required. He expressed concern that revoking periodic sentences
is "turning DOC upside down."

M5. PARKER said that is not a big problem because those

prisoners have a good arrangenent. If they violate the
arrangenent, they will not get a periodic sentence.
9: 30: 09 AM

CHAI R SEEKINS noted that Lt. Todd Sharp was available to answer
questi ons.

MS. BARBARA BRI NK, Public Defenders' Agency, informed nenbers
she had been with the agency al nost 23 years.

9:32: 20 AM

M5. BRINK thanked DOL and DOC for consulting the Public
Def enders' Agency when drafting the bill. She traveled wth
staff from DOC and DOL to a Denver "think tank” on sentencing.
She told nenbers that SB 56 is a broad, sweeping fix to what
m ght not be a mmjor problem and expressed concern about the
magni tude of changes it wll nmake. In 2000, the U S. Suprene
Court issued an opinion on Apprendy (ph), which says that any
fact that increases the penalty for a crinme beyond the statutory
maxi num nust be submitted to a jury and proven beyond a
reasonabl e doubt. Bl akely defined the maxi num sentence as what a
judge can inpose based on a jury verdict.

She said eight or nine states are in the sanme position as Al aska
and repeated that SB 56 is too broad for Alaska' s purposes.
Al aska adopted presunptive sentencing in 1978 to create
uniformty in sentencing. A 1997 Suprene Court Advisory
Commttee on Fairness and Access suggested that a study of
presunptive sentencing be undertaken. The Alaska Judici al
Council then issued its report, which said that presunptive
sent enci ng had been a success.

9:35: 51 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- January 18, 2005



M5. BRINK said the Alaska Judicial Council also found sone
ethnic variations in drug sentences and variations depending on

gender, location in state, and whether a public or private
attorney represented the offender. She repeated that the renedy
in SB 56 is too broad if Alaska's goal is to nmmintain

uniformty. SB 56 proposes to increase the ranges for sentencing
so it increases the possibility for greater disparity. SB 56
satisfies the requirements of Apprendy and Blakely but too
broadly. Now any judge can sentence anyone to an aggravated
sentence without a finding of aggravators, specific facts, or
the right for a sentencing court to have that reviewed by
anot her court. She likened it to taking a chainsaw approach to a
problem that required a scalpel. The Al aska Judicial Council
estimted that aggravated sentences are applied to between 105
and 122 cases each year.

M5. BRINK suggested sone alternative proposals. One would
provide the right of a jury trial. That would only affect cases
that are aggravated. That is not the nobst expedient way to
address the problem but sonetinmes expediency nust take a back
seat to constitutional rights. She said the point of the Bl akely
and Apprendy decisions was to increase the reliability in the
fact-finding process. A jury, not a judge, usually determ nes
facts. She read from the Suprenme Court decision on Fan Fan-
Booker:

The framers of the Constitution wouldn't have thought
it too nuch to demand that before depriving a nman of
10 nore years of his liberty, the state should suffer
t he nodest inconvenience of submitting its accusations
to the wunaninmous suffrage of 12 of its equals and
nei ghbors rather than a | one enpl oyee of the state.

She said that by expanding the judicial ranges for presunptive
sentencing in this bill, she doubts any aggravators wll cone
before the trial judge. She questioned why the state would
bother trying to prove an aggravator if it could get 10 extra
years on a defendant w thout proving anything.

9:40: 30 AM

M5. BRINK said her first point was that the bill is too broad,
considering the nunmber of cases in Al aska. Her second point is
that the proposed range is huge conpared to the goal of
uniformty. SB 56 will create lots of room for disparity. She
believes increasing the range wll increase sentences and
pointed out that there is no range below the presunptive

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- January 18, 2005



sentence. She said another problem wth the bill is that there
is no right to be indicted on an aggravator so that |eaves open
the question of whether the grand jury also has to hear evidence
on the aggravators. She explained that before a person can be
held to trial on a felony case, the facts nust be presented to a
grand jury, which is a one-sided proceeding. The grand jury is
to determ ne whether there is probable cause to believe a crine
was commtted. She noted over 90 percent of cases do not go to
trial

9:43: 33 AM

M5. BRINK said 90 percent of cases don't go to trial, often
because of the certainty of what the client is facing. By

i ncreasing the ranges, that certainty is elimnated. It wll not
be hel pful to plea-bargai ning because there will be a huge range
the defendant w Il consider hinmself subject to. Oten periodic
sentencing is used when a famly nenber is termnally ill or

died and the offender's presence is necessary. She believes it
is beneficial to the state to allow periodic sentences to
proceed because strong famly ties can be used to predict
success upon rel ease.

9:46: 04 AM

M5. BRINK said the state can wuse 31 aggravators and 16
mtigators. She then discussed burglary sentences.

Her nost strenuous objection was Section 7 because a judge can
i ncrease the sentence without having to find aggravators or nake
specific findings. She gave a further explanation of objections
and said SB 56 will give too nmuch discretion to judges.

She expressed the need for nore judicial review of sentences if
the goal is uniformty.

9:49: 08 AM

M5. BRINK said the cormittee could consider better renedies that
conply with the Sixth Amendnent and preserve nore determnate
sentenci ng nodels. At the Denver neeting she |earned that 8 or 9
states have simlar problens to Alaska with regard to the
Bl akely decision. No one can agree on a renedy to conply.
Indiana is following the Kansas nodel. Chio is letting the
courts sort out whether its procedures are conpliant. The
Departnent of Justice recommended to its prosecutors that it
take aggravators before a grand jury. Mnnesota has issued two

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -15- January 18, 2005



reports to its governor. SB 56 conpletely revises how sentencing
will occur in Al aska. She suggested establishing a sentencing
comm ssion to | ook at disparity and what other states are doing.
9:51: 47 AM

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced a 5-m nute at ease.

10: 01: 42 AM

CHAI R SEEKI NS reconvened the neeting and opened the hearing to
questions for M. Brink.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked for the total nunber of sentences that
were mtigated.

M5. BRINK said her statistics are from the Al aska Judicial
Council and it has npore data from 99 felonies. She offered to
get the information and cal cul ate the nunber.

SENATOR THERRI AULT wanted that information before going forward.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about the detrinents if aggravators were
not consi dered by the grand jury.

M5. BRINK said the point of the grand jury is to act as a safety
check. The second point of the grand jury is due process notice
of what wi tnesses say about the offender's conduct.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said the grand jury would still be required
to come up with the findings for the underlying case; this wll
only avoid a grand jury hearing on the potential aggravators. He
could see a whole tine continuum of charging soneone on final
sent enci ng.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked what happens in the course of a trial if an
aggravating factor turns up.

M5. BRINK thought that was a legitimte concern for the state

because often aggravators don't turn up until later. Oten, a
probation officer is not assigned or a pre-sentence report is
not witten until after convicted. She noted in the federal

system a lot of the investigative work happens on the front
end.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- January 18, 2005



CHAIR SEEKINS expressed concern that requiring a grand jury
i ndictment on the aggravator factor will slow the process down
or elimnate it as a sentencing factor.

10: 06: 31 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS noted that M. Brink said that less than 10
percent of people charged go to trial and that she believes an
increase in the range of presunptive sentences decreases
certainty to the penalty. He asked if she would attenpt to
negotiate with the district attorney an agreed-to range now or
whet her that would be left to the judge's discretion.

M5. BRINK said for the nost part, she attenpts to negotiate not
only a charged certainty or adjustnent, but also a sentence
certainty or adjustnent. She began to poll its agency attorneys
statewide and found that estimtes of agreed-upon sentences
ranged from 60 percent to 80 percent. Mst of the bargaining
that goes on now includes certainty as to the sentence.

10: 08: 20 AM

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked if one couldn't assunme this will be left to
the discretion of a judge.

M5. BRINK said wth the current system she has strong
confidence about what her client s facing because the
presunptive is a set nunber and not a range, although there nay
be sonme uncertainty about whether an aggravator can be proven.
Wth SB 56, there will be no reason for the state to offer the
|l ow end of the presunptive range because there is no reason to
believe the judge would give the | ow end.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if one was trying to evaluate the nunber of
cases that would go to trial, how the nunber of cases that would
go to trial would affect workload on personnel of both the
district attorney and public defender's offices.

M5. BRINK said the workload would increase if nore cases went to
trial but it is inpossible to predict the percentage of those
cases. She said it is up to the defendant to choose whether to
go to trial or enter into a negotiated pl ea.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if her concern is that the |evel of
uniformty wll be higher.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- January 18, 2005



M5. BRINK said her concern is a loss of uniformty because this

bill enlarges provisions and expands the discretion of a judge.
She al so expressed concern that SB 56 will jolt everything up a
not ch.

10: 11: 34 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked, with regard to plea-bargaining and a
client liking certainty, if the prosecutor plays into the role
of whether the court will take up potential aggravators.

M5. BRINK said absolutely and that they make the initial
deci sion of whether to charge the person with an aggravator.

10: 12: 13 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT argued that the prosecutor would have to take
the first step to trigger the aggravators but the court is
required to look at the aggravators so that the current nunber
in statute is not certain. He said he would imgine that in
pl ea- bargai ning, one of the first things that conme into play is
f oregoi ng any aggravators.

M5. BRINK agreed and said that is one of the first things
di scussed. Oten the deal is made for the presunptive sentence.
She said that under SB 56, she would not be able to tell the
client s/he has conmitted a two-year crine. Instead she wil
have to tell himit's a two to four-year crine.

10: 13: 46 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if she would discuss with a prosecutor
the nunber of years within the range so that dynam c woul d not
change all that nmuch. He then asked if she is fearful that the
court will automatically gravitate to the mddle or higher end
of the range w thout encouragenent fromthe prosecutor.

M5. BRINK said she couldn't answer those questions but explai ned
SB 56 will give the judge a big spread to pick from There is no
prioritization of what factors are inportant. The presunptive
was designed to take all of those factors into account.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked Senator Guess if she had any questions.

SENATOR GUESS had no questions but asked for a response from Ms.
Parkes | ater on her interpretation of Section 7.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- January 18, 2005



SENATOR HUGGE NS noted that Ms. Brink estinated that 90 percent
of cases are plea-bargained. He asked if the potential of a
hi gher sentence could increase that nunber to 91-92 percent.

10:16: 20 AM

M5. BRI NK thought the nunmber could go either way and she coul d
not make a prediction.

SENATOR FRENCH arri ved.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noted the commttee was considering the
foll owi ng changes: a change to the language in Sec. 2; adding
| anguage to ensure that a non-English speaking probationer
understands directions given by the probation officer; and
addressing issues raised with Sections 7 and 29.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked M. Brink if she believes that SB 56
threatens the constitutional rights of a defendant in any way.

M5. BRINK was not sure that it is constitutional to elimnate
the right to an appeal.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked her to wite a letter on that topic to the
commttee for further consideration.

10:18: 41 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if that issue is in Sec. 7.
CHAIR SEEKI NS said it is.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said the question on Sec. 29 has to do wth
Sec. 33, the applicability and retroactivity sections. He asked
whet her Sec. 29 would trigger an unconstitutional increase in
puni shient .

M5. PARKES said DOL does not believe any constitutional problens
exist. DOL believes SB 56 will codify and nake what is inplicit
explicit, regarding the parole board s powers. R ght now this
only applies to discretionary parole. She noted the problem now
is that a person can cone before the board to request
di scretionary parole repeatedly, which is tine consumng for the
parole board. SB 56 wll allow the board to refuse to hear
certain requests again.

10: 20: 42 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- January 18, 2005



SENATOR FRENCH asked if this could trunp a judge's restriction
on parole because the parole board would not hear from the
prisoner until the sentence inposed by the judge is conpleted.

M5. PARKES said that is correct.
CHAI R SEEKINS noted that other people want to testify on SB 56

but due to tinme constraints, the discussion would continue
tonmorrow. He then adjourned the neeting at 10:21:55 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- January 18, 2005



